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England, by right of discovery, acquired possesson of a large pat of the land in
North America and the government gave this land to those of its citizens who were
venturesome enough to sdtle in the practicaly unexplored wilderness.  This priority,
however gave the English citizens no right to the soil over the independent natives who
might be inhabiting this land until it was acquired from the possessors.

In 1606, King James |. divided the land into two parts. One hdf was given to a
London company the other haf to a company established at Plymouth, England.

Captain John Smith salled up the Charles River in 1614 and made a map of the
country through which he passed. This map was the firda on which the name New
England appeared. He gave the river its name and spoke of the Indians in this vicinity as
being “very kind, but in therr fury, no less vdiant’; while another writer sad that: “The
Indians may be rather compted to live richly, wanting nothing that is needful; and to be
commended for living a contented life, the younger being ruled by the eder, and the eder
ruled by the Powahs, and the Powahs ruled by the Devil, and then you may imagine what
good rule there is like to be amongst them”. It was a common beiegf among the early
stlersthat the Indians and the devil were in league.

The Prince of Wades, who later became Charles I. of England, gave English
names to many points on the New England coad, three of which are well known to al of
us Pymouth, Cgpe Ann, and Chales River, dthough the later was redly given this
name by Captain Smith.

In March, 1628, the Plymouth Council gave a grant of land, including the territory
occupied by Somerville, to the Massachusetts Bay Company. In the same year some
setlers from Sdem, settled on the north side of Charles River, which was occupied by
many Indians, built their houses and cdled their settlement “Charlestown”.

Previous to the settlement by white men, Charlestown and the territory near it was
the “Mushawomuk” of the Indians, and was controlled by the Pawtuckets, who aso
lorded it over the smaller tribes a Concord, Ipswich, Slem and other places.

A devadding epidemic soread among the Indians in this vicinity about the year
1613, lasted severd years and aided to a great extent by the battles among themsaves,
greetly reduced the tribes so that but a smal Indian populatiion was left in Eagtern
Massachusetts at the time of the ariva of the white men. One writer recorded that the
plague “in some places utterly consumed man, woman, and child, so that there is no
person |eft to lay claim to the soyle which they possessed”.

Previous to the great mortdity the Pawtucket tribe is sad to have had three
thousand warriors. Their chief was Nanepasbemit, or “New Moon”’. He was admost
continualy a war with the Tarrantines, a predatory tribe living in Maine, and a the same
time he preyed on most of the other tribes. His queen, Squa Sachem, succeeded him in
governing the tribe, and married Webcowit, dso called Wappacowet, who was the



“powwow, priest, witch, and sorcerer, or chirurgeon” of the tribe. From her, Somerville
halds an aborigind titleto itsterritory.

At the time of its early settlement, the tides daly ebbed and flowed through the
Charles, Miller's, Mydgtic Rivers and through Alewife Brook, Mill Pond, Winthrop and
other creeks, covered the meadow lands and marshes between what is now Mystic
Avenue and East Cambridge, and northwestward to Washington Street, and probably
flowed across Charlesown Neck. The lowlands and marshes to Union Square and
beyond were aso overflowed daly by the tide, and much of the land west of Union
Square, nearly to the present line of Cambridge, as well as most of the present park on
Broadway, al northeast of it, and perhaps some on the southerly sde of Broadway
received adaly submerging.

Severd sparkling sreams wound through the lower pats of Somerville and
findly mingled with the waters of the Charles and Mydtic Rivers.  Alewife Brook is the
only oneto survive.

Without a doubt there were some clearings in the uplands, but generaly spesking,
it was a wilderness, overgrown with timber. However, one early settler, in spesking of
the country, said: “The form of the earth here...is neither too flat in the plain lands, nor
too high in the hills but partakes of both in a mediocrity, and fit for pasture or for plough
or meadow ground, as men please to employ it. Through al the country be a thick wood
for the generd, yet in divers places there is much ground cleared by the Indians”
Another sdttler, writing home to England, said:  “I never came in a more goodly country
in dl my life. The grass and weeds grow up to a man's face in the lowlands, and by fresh
rivers, abundance of grass and large meadows, without any tree or shrub to hinder the

scythes.”

The writers of the early days expressed grest admiration for the abundance of
fruits, nuts and flowers everywhere to be found. Alewife Brook, teemed with the fish
from which it receve its name, and the Mydic River were plentifully supplied with
andts. Governor Dudley, in a letter to the Countess of Lincoln, mentions the partridges
“as big as our hens” and great wild turkeys, “exceeding fat, sweet and fleshy”. Wild
pigeons were often seen in enormous flocks. Deer, bear, wolves, and other animads
roamed the woods, and rattlesnakes were something to be reckoned with.

One of the early writers sad: “The fertility of the soil is much to be admired a.
The abundant increase of corn proves this country to be a wonderment...Yea, Joseph's
increase in Egypt is outstripped here with us...Here are aso dores of pumpion,
cowcumbers, and other things of that nature, which | know not. Also divers excelent
pot-herbs grow abundantly...swveet herbs ddightful to smdl...plenty of dngle damask
roses, very sweet, and other flowers, aswdll as various fruits and vines”

Somerville was origindly a part of the old colony of Charlestown, which was one
of the firg of the early settlements. Standish wandered over its hills in 1621, but the first
settlement was made only a short time before Winthrop secured his fam.  Complying



with orders received from London, the early settlers of Charlestown, as well as of other
towns in New England, purchased and took deeds of ther territory from the Indians, in
addition to the grants from the king. The deed from Squa Sachem to the town of
Charlestown, which includes Somerville, reeds asfollows: -

“The 15™ of the 2d Mo. 1639

“ Wee-Web Cowet, & Squaw Sachem do sell unto the Inhabitants of the Towne of
Charlestowne, all the land within the lines granted them by the court,” etc.

After describing the territory deeded, it endsthus: -

“We acknowledge to have received in full satisfaction, twenty and
one coates, nineteen fathoms of wampum, three bushels of corne. In
witness whereof we have hereunto sett our hands the day and years above
named.

“ the marke of Squa Sachem

“ the marke of Web Cowet

“ Qubscribed in the presence off

“ Jno. Humphrey

“ Robert ffeake.”

In a short time, the sdtlers, feding the need of more land for planting, and
desiring to trade with the Indians, pushed out farther into the country and laid out roads in
dl drections. The earliest highway was probably what is now Washington Street, from
Charlestown Neck to Harvard Square, for when Boston was settled in 1630, this highway
was dready in exigence. It was known as the “Highway to Newtowne’. Bow Stredt,
Somerville Avenue, and Elm Street were one dregt, known as “Charlestown Lane” and
led to Medford. Broadway was early known as “Menotomi€’s Road,” and led to the
settlement a& Menotomy, the Indian name for Arlington. Main Street a the top Winter
Hill is one of the oldest roads in Somerville. It led to Medford over Craddock’s Bridge,
the first bridge built in these pats. Eight lanes, caled range ways, a quarter of a mile
goat, were lad out by the inhabitants of Charlestown, undoubtedly as early as 1681,
leading from Washington and Bow Streets, Somerville Avenue, and EIm Stregt, over the
hills to Broadway. These were cdled by numbers.  The firss would correspond to
Franklin Street; the second to Cross Street; the third to Walnut Street; the fourth to
School Street; the fifth to Centra Street; the sixth to Lowell Street; the seventh to Cedar
Street; and the eighth to Willow Avenue. In addition to these range ways, there were
three others from Broadway into Medford, two of them corresponding to North and
Curtis Streets; the other one is not in existence now, having been cultivated by the owners
of the land through which it passed.

The fird white sdtler in Somerville of whom there is any record, was John
Woolrich, or Wolrich, who came in 1630 from the Charletown Peninsula The record
dates. “1630 — John Wooalrich, by reason of his trade with the Indians, built and fenced a
mile and a haf without the necke of land in ye maine, on ye right hand of ye way to New
Towne (Cambridge), on the sw. side of ye hill’. This dste would be near the tablet,
placed in 1890 on Washington Street near Dane Stret. Richard Pamgrave and Edward
Jones soon followed, settling not far from Union Square; and a year later, John Winthrop,



then Governor of the Massachusetts Colony, was granted 600 acres of what is now
Somerville, and lived on this propety which he cdled Ten Hills Farm, overlooking
Mysdtic River. For over 300 years this name has clung to his acres and Somerville is often
referred to as the city of hills. These hills have each some characterigic or were the
scene of some event which makes them notable.  Quarry Hill was the location of an old
powder house, where munitions were stored a the time of the Revolutionary War. Forts
were built on some of the other hills including Prospect Hill, from which Generd
Putnam unfurled his flag, and from which on January 1, 1776, The Great Union flag was
flung to the breeze. This was the flag of the United Colonies and the firs American flag
of tuly nationd import that ever waved in the face of a foe. In 1777, Burgoyne and his
soldiers were held prisoners on Winter Hill.  Ploughed Hill was the seat of the Urauline
Convent, destroyed by a mob in 1834. Centrd Hill, a pat of Prospect Hill, was
connected to the latter by a rampart in the Revolution. The City Hall, Library, and High
School are now located on Centra Hill.

The firgt years of the Colonists were years of hardship, peril, disease, and death.
It was necessary to fell forests to obtain suitable clearings and lumber for houses. Land
had to be prepared for fams and churches, and schools provided. The nearby Indians
were a constant menace, the food was scarce, and there were no adequate means to
combat sickness, but despite these hardships in a strange land, the satisfaction of knowing
that they were accomplishing something worthwhile added to the smple joys of ther
quiet life, compensating for their sorrows.

The land between Washington Street and Broadway, from the present
Charlestown line to the Old Powder House, was known to the first inhabitants as the
“Stinted Pagture’, or “Cow Commons’, each inhabitant of Charlestown having the right
to pasture a certain number of cows thereon. An hour after sunrise, a herdsman blew his
horn to collect the cattle, and drove them to the best grazing places on the common.

Cattle-ragng, farming, fishing, bartering with the Indians, hunting, brick making,
and quarrying were among the early occupations of the Colonigs. Oyders were plentiful,
and because of the large quantities of fish avalable, wers were built across Alewife
Brook. Alewives were used as fertilizer for the cornfieds, because they were to be had in
such abundance.

In the home, the housewife cooked the food, carded wool, spun the yarn, and in
most cases wove the cloth and fashioned the garments needed for her family. The
children worked dmost as had as thar parents. The family life in those homes was
gmple and sweet. As a rule there was a morning and evening service of scripture reading
and prayer a the humble family dtar and the members of the household worked and
rested with the serenity of true Chrigtians.

In this manner, for more than a century, the seitlers and their descendants went
on, with soil and sea furnishing years of plenty and years of privaion. This period,
though unmarked by events off unusud importance to Somerville, was not without
excitement. Witcheraft, clamed one victim a least, who was executed in Charlestown



about 1645, and forty-two years laer, shook the whole of pious New England; King
Philip's war, in 1675 — 1676; the revocation of the state charter, and Andros rule, from
1686 to 1689; King William's War, from 1690 to 1697, Queen Anne's War, from 1702 to
1713; and King George's War, from 1744 to 1748; during which Louisburg was captured
by Massachusetts and other colonid troops, and later, the French and Indian War,
resulting in the capture of Montreal and Quebec, - without a doubt each brought ther
glories and their grievesto the early inhabitants of Somerville.

The fetters of England's rule were gradudly tightening around the New England
men who aspired to be absolutdy free, and the trestment by King George and his
minigers grew continudly more autocratic and oppressive.  In 1774 a long series of
redrictions on the pat of the British Government culminated in the enactment of the
Boson Port Bill, which placed a disasirous embargo on Boston and Charlestown,
amounting to a complete blockede of the port upon which the welfare of the people
depended.

The British sent over strong military and nava forces to intimidate the colonigs.
On Somerville soil one of the firg hodile acts on the pat of the British occurred, when
on September 1, 1774, they came up the Mystic River form Boston, landed a Ten Hills
Farm, crossed to Broadway, and thence to the Powder House, from which they took two
hundred and fifty casks of powder beonging to towns in the vicinity. From there they
went to Cambridge, and seized the cannon that they found on the Common.

The loss of the powder was serious and the Colonists were darmed.  The next day
hundreds of minutemen were marching toward Boston from dl directions and hed
further seizures been attempted, an amy of many thousands would have been assembled
to oppose them.

After the British rad on the Powder House and Cambridge Common, the
colonists removed their remaining guns and war materid to Concord and other digtant
towns. But English officers in disguise soon discovered the hiding places, so that the
patriots were in constant suspense, feding that other seizures would be attempted. Watch
was kept on dl ways out of Boston by land or by water, so as to detect ingantly any
movement of the King's troops, to promptly darm the country, ad cal together the
minutemen.  Thirty men organized a company, and took turns, “two and two’, a this
watch. One of these men was Paul Revere.

Severd days before the march to Concord, the preparations observed aboard the
trangports and other boats in the harbor caused a suspicion that some formidable
expedition was intended; and “the town watches a Boston, Charlestown, and Cambridge,
were ordered to look well to the landing places’. About this time a lady in Boston sent
word to Samud Adams and John Hancock, who were a Lexington, that within a few
days troops would leave the town; but that their destination was unknown. On the 18th
of April, 1775, Dr. Warren learned that the soldiers were moving toward Back Bay. He
believed their object was to capture Adams and Hancock, and a once sent William
Dawes, by way of Roxbury, and Paul Revere, by way of Charlestown to Lexington.



Revere arranged for signas to be displayed from the steeple of the North Church — two
lanterns if the British went by water; one, if by land. He had dready displayed a lantern
from Christ’'s Church to warn Charlestown that the troops had begun their march. He
was rowed across the river, past the man-of-war “Somerset”, only a few minutes before
her sentinds were ordered to stop al boats. He landed in Charlestown where a good
horse awaited him, and set out on his midnight errand.

Soon after passing Charlestown Neck he saw, beneath a tree, two horsemen whom
he discovered to be British officers. One tried to get ahead of him, and the other to take
him. He turned his horse quickly and galoped towards Charlestown Neck, escaping by
way of Broadway. The officer who followed endeavoring to cut him off, got into a clay
pit, and Revere duding him, continued through Somerville, over Broadway and Man
Street, to Medford and to Arlington. It is said that on his way Revere galoped over to
Ten Hills Farm and signaed back to Charlestown from the barn there.

While Dawes and Revere were setting out on ther night dam, Lieutenant-
Colond Smith, of the tenth British, with eight hundred men, marched to the foot of the
Common, and a about 10 P.M., crossed Charles River and landed at East Cambridge,
near the ste of the Court House. As it was nearly high tide, East Cambridge was an
idand and the troops, skirting the marshes, were obliged to wade “thigh deep” to reach
Somerville.  They probably came through Prospect Street into Washington Street, and
through Union Square, to Lexington and Concord, where a warm welcome awaited them,
and they were to suffer ignominious defest in an engagement with vdiant Minute Men
and the ruddy-armed farmers, who fired the shot heard “round the world”.

After ther repulse a Concord, the retregting British, a Lexington, met Lord
Percy, who had been sent by way of Brighton and Cambridge with reinforcements. They
continued their retreast, condtantly harassed by the Americans, through Menotomy
(Arlington), North Avenue and Beech Stregt in Cambridge, and entered ElIm Stredt,
Somerville on the run, recaiving as they came, a hot fire form the Minute-Men, who were
dationed in the woods nearby. Mog of the people living on the line of retreat fled to
Medford on the approach of the British. Lord Percy planted his atillery on the
northwesterly spur of Spring Hill, and continued, and, in confuson, hot and exhausted,
his troops hurried down Milk Row. In the words of one of the officers “We were
attacked on al sides, from woods, orchards, sone walls, and every house’.

Some of the hottest fighting occurred aong the base of Prospect Hill, and here the
troops had recourse to their cannon again, with little effect, however. As they passed the
house owned by Samue Shedd, a soldier entered and began ransacking a bureau. He was
shot in the act by a Minute Man. A little beyond, on the sde of a hill, James Miller and
another Minute Man were firing on the British from behind a sone wal when they were
suddenly cut off and fire upon by a flanking party of the enemy. Miller, when urged to
ecape, made the heroic reply, “I am too od to run’, and continued firing a the
goproaching foe until he fdl, pierced by thirteen bullets. It was nearly night when the
troops passed down this part of Washington Street, and eight o'clock in the evening when
they reached Charlestown Neck, ther course down Washington Street being visble in



Boston by the flashes of their guns. Meanwhile, some severd hundred Minute Men were
hurrying over Broadway to intercept them, but were unsuccessful. The killing of Edward
Barber, near the Neck, and the capture of an officer of the Sixty-fourth Regiment closed
the day.

Shortly after the battle of Lexington the Provincid Congress voted to raise troops,
and soon fifteen thousand men were assembled near Boston, under command of Generd
Artemus Ward, a veteran of former wars. Meanwhile the British had removed to Boston,
and the peninsular of Charlestown became neutrd ground. The Americans, fearing the
destruction of the town if they occupied it, placed a guard near the “Neck” to prevent
communication with the enemy, and shortly after, Colond Patterson, with a regiment of
about 400 men, was stationed at the foot of Prospect Hill. The guard house was on top of
the hill, and earthworks were begun near Union Square, by suggestion of the committee
of safety, who recommended aso that Prospect, Winter and Bunker Hills be fortified.

On the 16™ of June, 1775, Colond Prescott was ordered to occupy Bunker Hill,
and in the evening, with a force of about a thousand men, and their entrenching tools, fe
marched slently through Washington Street and Union Square to Charlestown, where at
a council of war it was determined to fortify Breed's Hill in place of Bunker Hill. In the
morning Colond Prescott sent for reinforcements, and troops from Medford and
Somerville were sent forward. A little later, the news that the British had landed reached
Cambridge, and bells were rung and drums beat “to aams’. Patterson’s podtion a the
foot of Progpect Hill was strengthened, and additiona forces were sent to Prescott, few of
which at that time succeeded in reaching him, as the English frigates in the Mydtic and
Charles Rivers rained an incessant fire of shot and shell across Charlestown Neck and
into Somerville. At the beginning of the bombardment, the remaining inhabitants of the
peninsula fled across the Neck into or through Somerville to places of safety.

During the baitle which followed, al reserves were formed in Somerville, and
through here al reinforcements were sent.  The wounded were dso brought here. Some
of the reinforcements, ingtead of pressing forward to the field of battle, took a postion on
Cobble Hill, from which they opened an ineffectud atillery fire on the British boats. For
this and other disobedience of orders, severd officers were court-martided.  After the
battle the Americans withdrew to Progpect and Winter Hills, which they immediately

began to fortify.

In the memorable sSege which followed this beattle, Somerville held perhagps the
mogt prominent place. Its heights were of the greatest strategic importance, and were a
most formidable flank for the American lines. On Prospect, Central, Winter, Convent,
and Cobble Hills were built the Citadd and other invincible works of the beseging army,
which commanded the Mysgtic and Charles Rivers and the road over Charlestown Neck,
and effectudly hemmed in the British in tha direction. From some of these eminences
the bombardment on the enemy’s shipping and lines was incessant, and was as fiercdy
returned and these works bore the brunt of the nine month’'s sege, which began with the
battle of Bunker Hill, and ended with the evacuation of Bogton,. It was during this Sege,
that the Grest Union Flag, bearing thirteen dtripes, was first unfurled in the face of a foe,



January 1, 1776, and there it continued to fly till the end of the Sege, when it was
transferred to the forts which had been surrendered by the British.

From the evacuation of Boston, in March, 1776, to the surrender of Burgoyne in
October, 1777, no event of military importance took place here. After his surrender,
Burgoyne's troops were marched to Somerville, and remained as prisoners of war until
the fdl of 1778. The English soldiers were encamped on Prospect Hill and vicinity, and
the Hessans on Winter Hill, and were guarded by Massachusetts troops, under the
command of Generd Heeth. By the terms of surrender the prisoners were to be dlowed
“free passage’ to Great Britain from Boston; but Congress failed to raify this promise,
and the prisoners became very unruly and insolent, and as they had been alowed to keep
their sde arms and horses it required the utmost vigilance to keep them under subjection.
They remained here until the fall of 1778, when they were removed to Rutland, and later
to Virginia

The War of the Revolution over, the resdents of Somerville were again able to
devote their energies wholeheartedly to the business of making a living. Many new
indugtries sprung up, the mogt important from a monetary Sandpoint being the
manufacture of bricks. Brick yards were to be found in severd locdities, and long after
the manufacture of this commodity was given up in Somerville, undgghtly and dangerous
cay pits remained, many of them filled with water, a serious menace to the children of
the community. Lincoln Park and Broadway Park are located on spots where the pits
once stood. Stone quarrying was aso caried on, while dairy farming assumed such
proportions that the main thoroughfare across Somerville, from Charlesown to North
Cambridge, was cdled Milk Row.

Middlesex Cand, the firs cana of any condgderable length in this country, passed
through the northern part of Somerville. It connected the Merrimac River a Lowel with
the Charles River a Charlestown. In 1793 a corporation was formed, and the cana was
pushed to completion by Governor James Sullivan. It was completed in 1803. The
difference in leve between the two rivers was one hundred and four fegt, and it required
twenty locks in the twenty-seven miles. The cand was about four feet deep and thirty
feet wide. The boats for freight were of twenty-four tons burden, and plied between
Concord, N.H. and Boston, a distance of seventy-five miles. The cost of the cand was
$1,164,200. It took about twelve hours to go from Boston to Lowell, and from seven to
ten days to go from Concord to Boston. The business of the cand was the transportation
of freight and passengers. Many of the boats were owned by private individuds, but pad
a cetan tax to the company. Before the Lowdl ralroad was built, the cand did a large
business, carrying cotton for the mills and merchandise for dl the northern country, and
bringing back cargoes of up-river products, and large rafts of lumber from the upper
Merrimac to Boston.

Now came a period of growth. Not only was there an increase in the population,
but in the prosperity of the section. Besides the above mentioned indudtries, there were
adso edablished a bleachery and dye works, rope waks, a pottery, grist mill, distillery,
glass factory, saw mills, and a laer date, daughtering and rendering establishments.  The



Bleachery, incorporated in 1821, was the only one of these early works that survived to
this century and went out of Somerville only afew years ago.

A growing discontent in the minds of those living outside the “Neck” was steadily
increesng. There were no churches and hardly any school fecilities. Roads were
impassable and living conditions very poor. The disance from the sest of government
was aso a source of annoyance to the people of Somerville, especidly to those who lived
in the northern section. In fact, the latter repeatedly petitioned the Generd Court to be
annexed to Cambridge and West Cambridge, to which they were nearer, and with which
their interests were more in common. Nathanid Prentiss and four of his neighbors were
taken into Cambridge, forming a smdl rectangular projection into the present western
boundary of the city, but the rest of the inhabitants were ignored. By the time Somerville
became a town, however, the resdents of Charlesown beyond Alewife Brook had
aready been received into the fold of West Cambridge.

Other causes, more powerful than those areedy mentioned, operated in the
founding of the town of Somerville The section paid taxes but received little benefit
from them. Somerville was merdy a didrict of Charlesown where famers lived and
needs were sldom consdered. The people of Charlestown were not satisfied with
exiding conditions ether. For many years ater the Revolution the two parts of
Charlestown styled “within” and “without the neck” were nearly equd in population; the
former had by this time completely outstripped the laiter.  With this growth of population
and trade came the need of city inditutions, and consequently greater expenses were
involved. Therefore, the rurd pat of Chalestown found hersdf contributing to the
paving of the dreets, the maintenance of a night watch, to the building of engine houses,
and resarvoirs, and various other improvements from which she derived little benefit.
Hence it was tha these two parts of the town, which had been gradudly growing apart
and unlike, findly, in 1842, fdl asunder.

While some discusson had been hdd in the summer, and more interest had been
manifeted in the matter of a separation than for severa years before, an incident that
immediately led up to the petition for the incorporation of a new town named Somerville,
took place on a certain November day in the year 1841. Coloned Asa Pritchard, who
lived on Washington Street, between Medford and Boston Streets, rushed into the
ralroad office where Charles E. Gilman and Hiram Hacett were employed, said he was
disgusted at living in such a neglected and undesirable part of Charlestown, and declared
he would pay no more taxes in the town. Mr. Gilman jokingly proposed that they should
form a new town, where affairs could be conducted to ther liking, and from this seed the
tree took root. They thereupon prepared and posted notices for a meeting of the people,
to be hed on November 22 at the Prospect Hill schoolhouse, to consder the question of
founding a new town.

At this meeting a committee was gppointed to learn the minds of the resdents of
the digtrict regarding the proposed step. At a later meeting a committee was gppointed to
acetan the amount of money annudly expended outsde the “Neck”. This committee
reported that in thelr opinion, a new town might be mantaned for a somewhat smaler



sum than had usudly been raised from the didtrict. A petition was accordingly drawn up
and dgned by Guy C. Hawkins and 151 others, and a committee deputed to further its
passage through the Legidature, then in sesson. The inhabitants of Charlestown were a
firg favorably disposed to the petition, but after some objections from the “Neck Village’
they declared their oppostion to any divison that should not fix the boundaries a the line
of the Lowel Ralroad. At a lae hour of the discusson in the Legidature, with the
prospect of a postponement to another sesson, a compromise was effected, by which the
eaderly limits were defined as they now exid, and that pat of Charlestown extending
from Alewife Brook to the old Woburn line was annexed to West Cambridge. Thus
modified, the act passed the Legidature, and was approved by the Governor March 3,
1842.

The people of the new town were overjoyed a becoming independent. One
hundred guns were fired form Prospect Hill, and a grand bal was hed on the evening of
the sixteenth, a Murdock's Hotel, which 300 ladies and gentlemen attended, including
delegations from the neighboring towns. Dancing “with grest spirit till deven o' dock”,
the company then sa down to supper, after which the dancing was resumed till “some
hours after the witching time of night”.

The town, when incorporated, was rather small, having a population of 1,013, two
hundred houses, no store (John Ireland’s grocery in Milk Row was burned in December,
1841), and while a one time there had been three taverns, there were none now. Four
one-storied wooden schoolhouses, a few ledges of rock, a pound, and an engine house
housing a feeble tub engine, the whole having a vaue of $6,655, condituted the public
property of the new town. No church then or ever had exised within her limits. There
were, however, a bleaching establishment, the two twine and rope factories of Geddes on
Washington Street, and of Allen, where Allen Street now runs, and Runey’s Pottery. The
pound was used as a jail, and the schools, only one of which had been in existence twenty
years, were attended by 293 pupils, and were located as follows. The Prospect Hill
Grammar and Primary, each occupied a room in a long, low dtructure at the junction of
Shavmut and Medford Streets, at the approximate location of the present Centra Square,
where the Centrd Fire Station is now located. The building was afterwards moved to the
corner of Somerville Avenue and Prospect Street.  The lower Winter Hill Primary, at the
westerly corner of Broadway and Franklin Street, the upper Winter Hill Primary, on the
westerly gde of Centrd Street, near the corner of Broadway, the Milk Row Rrimary, in
the eastern corner of the cemetery lot. As the schoolhouse of the Walnut Hill district was
within the limits of the territory annexed to West Cambridge, that district was temporarily
without a school building.

The houses were scattered aong the main highways and were not close enough in
any pat to foom a village The inhabitants were engaged in various pursuits, mostly
within the town itsdf and those who had an established business in Boston were very
few. Brickmaking was the town’s most important industry and was carried on by many
of the resdents and furnished employment for many men from Mane and New
Hampshire dso.  Somerville, however, was essentidly an agriculturd district, and by far
the principa occupation of her people was farming in its various branches.



But few dreets had been built in the preceding century and a hdf and the fams
extended amogt without interruption over the centrd region lying between the Winter
Hill road on the one sde and the Cambridge and Milk Row roads on the other. Three-
pole Lane, corresponding to Shawmut and Cross Streets, had dways been maintained as
a thorough-fare, and the Rangeway, now Centra Street, had been but little encroached
on, but the range ways, generdly, were fenced in , and had been more or less improved
by the owners of the adjoining farms and where there was an open way it was merely a
rough inlet for the fidd carts, impasssble for light vehides Middle Lane, from a point
on Cross Street opposite Tufts Street to Central Street, pursued a devious way, the middle
path of which is the present Highland Avenue.

Medford and Prospect Streets, and that section of Somerville Avenue now
between Union Square and Medford Street had been built many years, but Linwood
Street and the remainder of Somerville Avenue to the East Cambridge line, - the latter “a
miserable gpology for a road” were just coming into being. Beacon Street existed, but
dill under the name of the old Middlesex Turnpike. West Somerville had only a few
houses dotted over its territory, and East Somerville had but a few dong its edges.
Spring Hill had just been named and was being lad out in house lots and dreets, largdy
through the enterprise of athen nonresident, George O. Brastow.

The firgt busness of the new municipdity was to organize a government, and that
was done a a town meeting held in the Prospect Hill Schoolhouse on the 14™ of March.
Such officers as had been previoudy nominated in caucus were eected. Nathan Tufts,
charman; John S. Edgely, Cdeb W. Ldand, Luther Mitchdl and Francis Bowman
condtituted the firs Board of Sdectmen; and Charles E. Gilman and Edmund Tufts were
chosen the fird town clerk and the firg treasurer and collector, respectively. At a
meeting on April 4", the following appropriations were voted: For the support of schools,
$1,800; maintenance of highways, $2,000; county tax, $450; support of the poor, $200;
contingencies, $300; atotal of $4,700.

After the town was organized, the people gave ther attention to the establishment
of Chrisian worship, and a Sunday School was darted in the Medford Sireet
Schoolhouse, by Miss Elizabeth P. Whitredge, a teacher in the public schools. Around
this school was formed the Firg Congregationd Society, which worshipped in the old
engine house on Washington Street from March, 1844, till a church edifice was erected
the following yesr.

Nothing worthy of note occurred in the first decade of the new town's life. Little
was done in the way of improvement and few public works were atempted. It was a
problem to keep the poorly congtructed roads in repair and to provide proper school
accommodations, for by the year 1850 the populatiion had more than trebled, having
reached 3,540. The annua expenditures had correspondingly increased, and a town debt
of $20,000 had been incurred, equa to one-hdf the vaue of the public property. The
schools, whose atendance had more than doubled, were receving an annud



gopropriction of between five and sx thousand dollars. Land advanced in price and
continued to advance until the financid criss of 1857.

The growth of Somerville can be atributed to the form of trangportation which
was coming into use throughout the country, the railroad. By the year 1842 the horn of
the canal boat could no longer be heard.

The days of staging were dso fagt passing avay and a new era was dawning. The
work of trandforming this farming didtrict into a city of homes for the business people of
Boston had begun. In the year 1850 a patron of the railroad traveled to Boston for less
than it would cost today.

The next ten years saw great progress in Somerville and many inditutions of
various kinds were edablished.  Highland Avenue was extended from Irdand's
Rangeway, or School Street, to Central Street and severd houses were erected on it. East
Somerville had many more streets and houses and was fast becoming a populous and
important part of the town. During this period five church organizations were formed. In
1852, a long desred high school was established, and the present City Hal built for its
accommodation. The lower story of this building was fitted up for town purposes, and
after ten years of medting in different places, - now at the Medford Street schoolhouse,
agan a the engine house, and later in the vestry of the firs church, - the town had, for
thefirg timein its history, an gppropriate public hal.

In 1851 the first Somerville directory was issued, a pamphlet of thirty-two pages,
which contained 590 names, modly the heads of families It was printed by Edmund
Tufts, the town printer, in the old Tufts house a the corner of Broadway and Centra
Street. Six hundred copies were issued, costing the town $63.50.

In 1853 the Somerville Light Infantry was organized, and George O. Brastow
became its fird cgptan. From the year 1854 until Somerville became a city, crimind
cases were tried by Francis Tufts, at firgt in his office on Washington Street, at the corner
of Medford Street, and later, in 1861, in the old Medford Street school building, which
had been removed to Progpect Street.  Gas came to Somerville in 1853 and six years later
dreet lamps were inddled, and about this time, a uniform plan for Sdewadks was
adopted.

The year 1858 witnessed the advent of horse-cars which some of our citizens
predicted would “add to the future prosperity of the town”, one line through Broadway
and another through Elm, Milk and Washington Streets, through Charlestown to Boston.
In 1863, tracks were laid from Union Square to East Cambridge, and a line was operated
from West Somerville direct to Boston.

By the year 1860 the population had become 8,025, and the number of houses
1,282. The taxable property was valued at $5,760.00 and the debt was $90,924. There
were 1,707 pupils in the twenty-four schools presded over by five mae and twenty-four
female teachers.



The few remaning years of the town's life were very active. The populaion was
rapidly increasing, busness was good, land was advancing in vaue, and large public and
private enterprises were entered upon. In 1866 the fire department was reorganized; in
1867 the firg public sewers were lad; and in the following year, Mystic water took the
place of wells, cigerns, and fire reservoirs. A grand bal and supper with appropriate
exercises were held on March 21, 1867, to commemorate the twenty-fifth anniversary of
the incorporation of the town. It was aso the occasion of the dedication of the Town Hall
in the new Forster School building.

In 1870, Post 139, G.AA.R. was organized, while in the same year the police
department was reorganized, and a regular day and night patrol placed on duty. The
Lexington and Arlington Branch ralroad was congructed, and the West Somerville
section began to grow very rapidly.

At the close of 1870, the population had become 14,685 and the number of
dwelings 3,061. Two years later the vauation was estimated at $15,775.000, and the
debt $593,349, againgt a public property vauation of nearly $700,000. The schools now
numbered fifty-two, sixty-five teachers were employed, and the town spent upwards of
$50,000 annually on this department.

The time had a last come when the public afars of the town had become too
important and complex for the old town machinery and a deegated form of government
was demanded. Sentiment in favor of annexation to Boston was strong in some quarter,
but it was voted to ask for a city charter. A petition was presented to the Legidature
ealy in 1871, and on the fourteenth of April, 1871, the charter was granted. It was
accepted by the people a a town meeting held April 21. By the provisons of the charter,
on thefirst day of January, 1872, Somerville became a city.

When the news of the fal of Fort Sumter came, Somerville, then a town of about
nine thousand inhabitants, promptly responded to the demands of patriotism. Many war
meetings were hdd and enligments went on amid great enthusasm. Committees were
formed for recruiting, for rasing funds, and for sending supplies.

On April 15, 1861, Presdent Lincoln issued his first cal for troops, and on the
19" the Someville Light Artillery, under command of Captain George O. Brastow and
Lieutenants Frederick R. Kindey and William E. Robinson, left Faneuil Hal on ther way
as Company |, Fifth Regiment. In the Battle of Bull Run, the Fifth took an active part,
and at the cdlose of its three months term of enlisment it was mustered out and returned
home.

In the spring of 1862, Company |, now under command of Cgptan William E.
Robinson, again tendered its services to the governor, but they were not required.

In June, 1862, the cdl for three-years men was issued, and a company known as
the Somerville Guards was formed, under the command of Captain Frederick R. Kindey.



The company encamped on Prospect Hill, and once more that summit was thronged with
men amed in the cause of liberty. They were ordered to Boxford, and September 6,
1862, as Company E, Thirty-ninth Regiment, left for Washington; from there they went
to Arlington Heghts, and thence into winter quarters a Poolesville, Maryland.  In the
goring of 1863, after three months service a Washington, the company was transferred
to the Army of the Potomac, and served throughout that terrible campaign from Mine
Run to Appomattox, including the baitles of the Wilderness, Spotsylvania, North Anna,
Toloptomy, Bethesda Church, Petersburg, Weldon Ralroad, Debney’s Mills, Gravelly
Run, and Five Forks, and, with diminished ranks, it returned to Somerville a the close of
the war. At Gravely Run, Captan Willard C. Kindey, in whose memory the GA.R.
Pogt in Somerville was named, was mortally wounded.

The Somewille Light Infantry, with Cgptan Benjamin F. Parker in command,
was again mugtered in for nine months on September 19, 1862, and after encamping on
Prospect Hill and a& Camp Lander, the company salled October 22 for Newburn, North
Cadlina It was now Company B, Fifth Regiment. Two days later the regiment was
ordered to Washington. On the 21% of November, 1862, it set out for Williamstown, a
march of over one hundred and sixty miles, and on December 10", the regiment took part
in the expedition againgt Weldon Railroad.

July 25, 1864, the Light Infantry was mustered into service for the third time, with
Captain John Coffin commanding, and July 28", the company left once more for the
South, pledged for one hundred days service. Part of the regiment to which the company
belonged was sent to Fort McHenry, and part of Fort Marshdl, a which places and in
Bdtimore it did effective duty in guarding prisoners and cutting off supplies until the
expiraion of its term of enligment. As a pat of the Eighth Army Corps, it was sent to
reinforce Sheridan in the Shenandoah Valey.

The regularly organized companies did not account for dl of the Somerville men
who took part in this war. The names of hundreds are to be found on the ralls of the
volunteer infantry, cavdry, and atillery organizations of Massachusetts and other states
and many more joined the engineer sarvice, the regular amy, and the navy. The town, in
al, supplied 1,135 men for the army, of whom forty were commissoned officers, and of
these, 250 were wounded, and ninety-eght killed in bettle or died from sickness or
injuries. The people & home were not idle while their men were away; $200,000 or more
were raised toward the support of the Union cause, and everything possible was done to
lessen the hardships of the men in camps and hospitals.

The man chosen to be the firsd mayor of the newly made city was George O.
Brastow, who had taken a leading pat in Somerville affars for many years. Aaron
Sagent became City Treasurer, and Charles E. Gilman, City Clek. The following
comprised the Board of Aldermen: William H. Furber, Danid E. Chase, Jacob T. Glines,
Clark Bennett, John G. Hall, Horace Haskins, Parson Davis, and John R. Poor; Sdwyn Z.
Bowman was the City Salicitor.



Trunk sewers from Cambridge through Somerville was one of the important
accomplishments of the firg adminigrations. In 1874, the fird of the pats was
condructed from sixteen acres of land between the Winter Hill and Mount Benedict
sections of the city. Bridges on Washington, Medford, and other dtreets were built
between 1878 and 1880. A police sgna sysem and dectric dreet lighting were
introduced in 1878. a water sarvice for the higher parts of the city was established in
1890. The heirs of Nathan Tufts donated the property with the old Powder House to the
city in 1890, and the following year land was secured around it to make a park, which
was opened in 1893. The English High School, more fire dations, additional parks,
parkways, and bridges, extenson of the sewer sysem and many more improvements
marked the closing years of the century.

The nineteenth century was not to cdose however, until the young men of
Somerville were put to another test of loyaty and valor. To quote from an address given
by the Honorable Albion A. Perry, Mayor of Somerville in 1896, '97, and '98, on July 3,
1922: “ | need not tell you that there was no fatering when the cdl of country again
sounded in ther ears.  Chearfully they put on the uniform and embarked for the fair
Cuban Ide to end the torture and butchery which Spanish soldiers were engaged in at our
very doors. More than this To them was assgned the righteous task of avenging the
unprovoked act of pefidy on the pat of Spain, by which an American warship was
destroyed in the harbor of Havana, and the mangled bodies of hundreds of our gdlant
salors and marines were buried in the waters of the sea.  Every duty demanded of our
soldier boys in that short but important war was performed with courage and dacrity.
Our Spanish Was veterans are worthy sons of the sres whose vdiant deeds were
recorded in blood on the fields of Shiloh, Antietam, and Gettysourg”.



Somerville has grown geadily dsnce it was fird settled, as can seen from the
following censusfigures

1842 1,013
1850 3,540
1860 8,025
1870 14,685
1880 24,933
1890 40,152
1900 61,643
1910 77,236
1920 93,091
1930 103,908
1940 102,304

The latter figure condtitutes a tremendous number of people occupying a territory
of only 4.2 square miles, in fact, Somerville is sad to have a greater population for its
dze than any other city in the country.

There are about 126 indudtries in the city, which employ amost 6,000 people,
while 31,752 actudly find employment here.  We have eght financid inditutions with
resources of about $57,000,000. The retall busness comprises over six miles of sore
frontage, scattered dong the principa dreets, and in the following squares. Davis, Union,
Tede, Powder House, Cuitter, Bal Wilson, Magoun, Gerrior and Gilman.

Trangportation service is excdlent. The Boston and Maine Railroad has stations
in Somerville, and the Boston Elevated has lines to or connecting with other lines to al
aurrounding cities.  The trackless trolley has, in this year of 1942, replaced most of the
street cars and is proving to be quicker, less noisy, and more comfortable. The Boston &
Albany Ralroad and the New York Centra Lines are within the Boston switching lines
and teke care of a portion our freight, the remainder being handled by motor truck
savice. There are man highways in dl directions and a channd in the Mydic River
leading to Boston Harbor.



